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E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
Procedure for the 2025 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders

|. Call the Meeting to Order
I1. Chairperson Remarks
[11. Management Presentation

(Company Reports)
V. Proposals
V. Discussions
V1. Questions and Motions

VIl.Adjournment



E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
Agenda of 2025 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders

Type of Meeting: Physical Shareholders' Meeting with the

Assistance of Video Conferencing

Time and Date: 9:00 a.m., 11 June 2025 (Wednesday)

Place: No. 37, Gongdong 1st Rd., Xidi Vil., Shengang Township, Changhua

County, Taiwan (R.0.C.) (The canteen of Chuansing Factory)

I. Call the Meeting to Order

Il. Chairperson Remarks

[1l. Management Presentations (Company Reports)
1.
2.

3.
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2024 Business Report and 2025 Business Plans.

Audit Committee’s Review Report on the 2024 Financial
Statements.

Report on the Distribution of 2024 Employee Compensation and
Directors’ Remuneration

Report on Directors’ Remuneration for 2024

Report on the Issuance and Conversion of the Second Domestic
Secured Convertible Corporate Bonds.

Report on Loans of Company Funds.

Report on Endorsement and Guarantee.

Report on Significant Transactions with Affiliates.

posals

1. Adoption of the 2024 Business Report and Financial Statements.
2. Adoption of the Proposal for Distribution of 2024 Profits.

V. Discussions
1. Amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation”

VI. Questions and Motions

VII. Adjournment



[11. Management Presentations (Company Reports)

1. 2024 Business Report and 2025 Business Plans

Dear shareholders:

In 2024, we overcame numerous challenges and delivered remarkable results. Our annual
consolidated revenue reached NT$4.623 billion, representing a 23% year-over-year increase
and marking a historic high for the Company. Despite this achievement, we are entering 2025
amidst increasingly volatile external conditions. The economic outlook in China remains
uncertain, and the imposition of higher import tariffs by the United States is intensifying
global supply chain competition. In response, we are proactively enhancing our internal
competitiveness as a strategic countermeasure. This year, our management priorities are
focused on stringent cost control, accelerating time-to-market for new products, and
expanding into emerging markets. We are continuing the strategic direction set forth last year.
In particular, our India operations are expected to begin volume production and shipment in
the first half of the year. While the Indian market remains relatively unfamiliar and carries a
degree of risk, it also represents one of the most promising growth opportunities globally.
With cautious optimism, we plan to allocate additional resources to capture this potential. In
parallel, we are initiating strategic alliances with partners that offer complementary strengths,
enabling us to co-develop new products and jointly explore market opportunities. In China,
our AR-HUD product has secured the leading market position, and we look forward to
leveraging this success to promote our globally exclusive 3D AR-HUD technology and
secure more OEM projects. In Southeast Asia, we will continue to diversify our product
offerings and expand our customer base. Meanwhile, in the U.S. and European markets, we
are actively pursuing product qualification processes with key customers, while positioning
our offerings as competitive alternatives to the Chinese supply chain. Through these
initiatives, we aim to sustain long-term growth, enhance shareholder value, and solidify our
leadership in the global automotive electronics industry.

To strengthen our competitive advantage in the year ahead, we have developed strategic plans

focused on the following three key areas:

1. Organizational Efficiency: We will leverage Al and other digital tools to enhance
operational efficiency, reinforce risk management, and improve our supply chain resilience
and responsiveness.

2. Product Development: We will continue to expand our product portfolio, including 3D
AR-HUD, Al VPA, PHUD, and E-mirror systems, while exploring broader applications
for intelligent cockpit solutions in both two-wheel and four-wheel vehicles.

3. Market Expansion: We will accelerate business development in emerging markets such as
India, and capitalize on reshoring trends in Europe and the U.S. resulting from China's
supply chain decoupling.

In light of increasing economic uncertainties this year, the Company is fully equipped to

confront challenges and transform them into opportunities, with a continued commitment to

pursuing new business prospects and achieving exceptional results.
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1. 2024 Business Performance

(1) Operating Revenue: The Company’s consolidated net revenue for 2024 amounted to
approximately NT$4.623 billion, representing a 23% increase compared to 2023.

(2) Operating Expenses: The Company’s consolidated operating expenses for 2024
amounted to approximately NT$748 million, representing a 15% increase compared to
2023.

(3) Profitability: The Company’s consolidated net income after tax for 2024 amounted to
approximately NT$379 million, representing a 63% increase compared to 2023.

(4) Analysis of Financial Income, Expenses, and Profitability

Unit: in NT$ thousand

Analytical Items 2024 202_3
Consolidated Consolidated

Net Operating Revenue 4,623,396 3,766,293
Operating Cost (3,425,396) (2,867,240)
Gross profit 1,197,427 899,053
Operating Expense (748,532) (650,006)
Operating Income 448,895 249,047
Non-Operating Income 20,385 24,283
Income Before Tax 469,280 273,330
Income Tax Expense (89,778) (40,738)
Net Income 379,502 232,592
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)

for the Current Period 70153 (8,496)
Total Comprehensive Income 449,655 224,096
Basic Earnings per Share (NT$) 3.09 1.89
Return on Assets (%) 8.94 6.25
Return on Equity (%) 16.15 10.98
Net Profit Margin (%) 8.21 6.18

(5) Achievements in Research and Development Projects and Product Development
1. Platform Optimization of 3D ARHUD
2. Software Development of 3D AR Creator
3. Preliminary Technology Development of PHUD (Panoramic HUD)
4. Early Development of Al VPA



2. Outline of the Business Plan for 2025
(1) Business Strategy and Marketing Policy

1. Explore ARHUD and other innovative product applications
2. Cultivate the Indian market and further expand market penetration in India
3. Expand into non-passenger four-wheel vehicle markets
4. Secure new orders from European and American car manufacturers
5. Accelerate the advancement of strategic alliances
(2) Research and Development Projects and Product Development Plan
1. 3D ARHUD mass production model development and production preparation for
Mass-produced Vehicle Models
2. 3D AR Creator software development
3. Al VPA intelligent interactive interface development
4. ARHUD L.ite multi-model mass production development
5. PHUD mass production model development and production preparation

6. Electronic digital rearview mirror development and production preparation

3. The Company's Future Development Strategy, and the Effect of External Competition,
the Legal Environment, and the Overall Business Environment
We have established three well-developed production bases in Taiwan, Jiangsu, and Thailand.
Each has passed stringent customer audits and complies with supply chain qualifications. In
the face of intensifying international competition, we aim to leverage our innovation
capabilities, outstanding vehicle Tier 1 customer ratings, and localization advantages to break

through limitations and proactively embrace the challenges of the future.

We will continue to pursue our strategic objectives with discipline and determination. We

deeply appreciate the unwavering support and trust of our shareholders as we move forward.

Chairman: Hsi-Hsun Chen General Manager: Hsi-Hsun Chen Accounting Supervisor: Pi-Huan Chen



2. Audit Committee’s Review Report on the 2024 Financial
Statements

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Company has prepared the 2024 Business Report, Consolidated Financial
Statements, Parent Company Only Financial Statements, and Proposal for
Distribution of Profits, which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and
resolved and approved by the Board of Directors. The CPA firm of Ernst & Young,
represented by CPAs Tzu-Ping Huang and Wen-Chen Lo, was retained to audit the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Parent Company Only Financial Statements
and has issued an audit report relating to the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Parent company only financial statements with unqualified opinion. According
to relevant requirements of Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and

Avrticle 219 of the Company Act, we hereby submit this report for your review.

Sincerely,
For the 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD

Audit Committee
Convener: ;uf-

10 March 2025



. Report on the Distribution of 2024 Employee Compensation and
Directors’ Remuneration

(1) Pursuant to Article 27 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if the Company reports
a profit for the year, no less than 1% shall be allocated as employee compensation and no
more than 5% as directors’ remuneration. However, if there is any accumulated deficit, the
amount shall be reserved in advance to offset such losses.

(2) For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company allocated 3% of profit as employee
compensation and 1.5% as directors’ remuneration. The total amounts were
NT$14,778,283 and NT$7,389,142, respectively, and were distributed in cash.

(3) In accordance with the “Regulations Governing Remuneration for Directors and
Functional Committee,” independent directors receive a fixed monthly compensation
regardless of the Company’s profitability, and do not participate in the distribution of
remuneration.

(4) The allocation of individual directors’ remuneration is determined with reference to the
performance indicators set forth in the “Regulations Governing the Performance
Evaluation of Directors and Functional Committees,” including the level of participation
in company operations, enhancement of board decision-making quality, board
composition and structure, director selection and continuing education, and internal
control. The distribution is also made in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the
Remuneration of Directors and Members of Functional Committees.”

. Report on Directors’ Remuneration for 2024

(1) Individual directors’ remuneration includes remuneration, retirement pension, directors’
remuneration, business execution expenses, and remuneration related to concurrently
serving as employees. For directors’ remuneration in 2024, please refer to P.34.

. Report on the Issuance and Conversion of the Second Domestic Secured
Convertible Corporate Bonds is attached as P.35.

. Report on Loans of Company Funds is attached as P.36.
. Report on Endorsement and Guarantee is attached as P.37.

. Report on Significant Transactions with Affiliates is attached as P.38.



V. Proposals

1: (Proposed by the Board)
Proposal: Adoption of the 2024 Business Report and Financial Statements

Explanation: 1. The Company’s 2024 Business Report, Consolidated
Financial Statements and Parent Company Only Financial
Statements have been completed. The Consolidated Financial
Statements and Parent Company Only Financial Statements
have been audited by independent auditors, Tzu-Ping Huang
and Wen-Chen Lo of Ernst & Young, Taiwan.

2. Please refer to P.3-P.5 for the Business Report; and P.11-P.31 for
the Financial Statements.

Resolution:

2: (Proposed by the Board)
Proposal: Adoption of the Proposal for Distribution of 2024 Profits.

Explanation: 1. The net profit after tax for 2024 is NT$379,502 thousand.
A profit distribution table is prepared in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Incorporation.

2. The 2024 proposed cash dividend per share for shareholders is
NT$2. Please refer to P.32 for Profit Distribution Table.

3. Upon the approval of the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, it is
proposed that the Board of Directors be authorized to resolve
the ex-dividend date, ex-rights date, and other relevant issues.

4. In the event that the number of outstanding shares is affected by
a buyback of shares or conversion in connection with
convertible corporate bonds or other factors that may lead to a
change in the dividend payout ratio, it is proposed to the
Shareholders’ Meeting for approval that the Chairman of the
Board of Directors be authorized to handle the matter at his
discretion.

Resolution:



V. Discussions

1: (Proposed by the Board)
Proposal: Adoption of the Amendments to the “Acrticles of Incorporation”.

Explanation: The comparison table of the proposed amendments to the Articles
of Incorporation is attached as Attachment 3 (P.33).
Resolution:

V1. Questions and Motions

VII. Adjournment



Attachment 1

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Declaration Statement

The entities that are required to be included in the consolidated statements of affiliates of
E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. as at and for the year endedC1 December 2024 under
the “Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business
Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” are the same as
those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards No.10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.
Relevant information required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of
affiliates has all been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of parent and
subsidiary companies. Consequently, E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. and its

subsidiaries did not prepare a separate set of consolidated financial statements of affiliates.

Truly yours

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Chairman: Hsi-Hsun Chen

10 March 2025
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To E-LEAD Electronic Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of E-LEAD Electronic Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of 31 December 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the
summary of material accounting policies (together “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2024 and 2023, and
their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed
and became effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit
and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. Based on our audits and the report(s) of the other
auditor, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of 2024 consolidated financial statements of the Group. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Allowance for losses on accounts receivable

As of 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable and allowance for losses
were NT$1,146,488 thousand and NT$25,522 thousand, respectively, and the net accounts
receivable accounted for 24% of total assets, which was significant to the Group. As the allowance
for losses is measured by the expected amount of credit losses over the life of the asset, the
assumptions used in the measurement involve significant management judgement. We therefore
determined this a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures include, but are not limited to, obtaining an understanding of, and testing the
effectiveness of, the internal control system established by management over the collection of
accounts receivable; Analyzing changes in accounts receivable and changes in turnover rates over
the period and testing the collection of accounts receivable after the period to assess recoverability;
Review the breakdown of accounts receivable at the end of the period and recalculate the
reasonableness of the allowance for losses on accounts receivable based on the classification of
individual credit groups and the expected loss rate as assessed by management. We have also
considered the appropriateness of the disclosure of accounts receivable in Notes 5 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements

Evaluation of allowance for losses on decline in value of inventories and obsolescence of inventories

As of 31 December 2024, the net inventory of the Group was NT$850,785 thousand, representing
18% of total assets. Due to the uncertainty arising from rapid changes in product technology and
market demand, the allowance for losses on decline in value and obsolescence of inventories
involve significant management judgment, we therefore determined this a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures include, but are not limited to, obtaining an understanding of, and testing the
effectiveness of, management's internal control over inventory, including obtaining an
understanding of the reasonableness of management's policy for the allowance for losses on decline
in value and obsolescence of inventories; assessing management's inventory planning, selecting
significant inventory locations and conducting physical observations of inventory counts to confirm
the quantity and condition of inventories; testing the adequacy of the allowance for losses on
decline in value of inventories. This includes testing the reasonableness of the net realizable value
of inventories by reviewing a sample of evidence relating to the purchase and sale of inventories,
obtaining a sample of inventory ageing schedules to test the correctness of the ageing calculations
and recalculating the reasonableness of the allowance for losses on obsolescence of inventories. We
also considered the appropriateness of the disclosures in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

12



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed
by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability to continue as a going concern of the Group, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the
Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

13



2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the
Group. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the accompanying notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of 2024 consolidated financial statements and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
14



Other
E-LEAD Electronic Co., Ltd. has prepared its parent only financial statements for the years ended

31 December 2024 and 2023, and we have issued an audit report with an unqualified opinion for
reference purposes.

/s/Huang, Tzu Ping

/s/Lo, Wen Chen

Ernst & Young, Taiwan

10 March 2025

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the
Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such
consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not
intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or Standards on Auditing of the
Republic of China, and their applications in practice. As the financial statements are the responsibility of the
management, Ernst & Young cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any
errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.

15



Enslish Translston of Consolidsted Financis] Sttements Orizmalty Issued in Chinssa
E-LEAD ET ECTRONIC CO., LTD. AWND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Far the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2023
(Expressed i Thowsands of Wew Tarwan Dollsrs)

Assats 31 December 2024 31 December 1023

Codz Arcounting Irzms Watas Ampount L Ampunt Bh
(Current aszems
1100 | Cash snd cash equivalenns 461 764340 16 5851008 0
1110 | Fimancial sssets at fair value through profit or loss - cument 462 10,874 - B340 -
1130 | Motes recelivable, nat 4 27T [ 00410 2
1170 | Accounis recarvable, nat 4,637 1,120,966 4 274 608 21
1200 | Other receivables 47 30 5BE 1 41 4B 1
130x | [Dventonies 464 850,785 18 1,071 433 2
1410 | Prepayments 12177 1 30435 1
1470 | Onher currsnt sssets 46358 45,631 1 6627 -
1lxx| Toml cumrent asses 3,128155 &7 3035370 &
Non-currzat sssefs

1517 | Financisl sssers at fair valoe through other comprehensive income - non-current 468 1,353 - ] -
1550 | Iovesiments sccounted for using the equity methed 1467 THE - 6,041 -
1600 | Properry, plant and squipmsnt 4688 1226402 .} 1,008 04 35
1755 | Bishr-of-use sszen 461878 12518 - 14716 -
1720 | [InmnEble pssems 4 32 3EE 1 31369 1
1840 | Deferred mx assels 4622 202246 4 137307 3
1900 | Oiher non-urrent asses 160 110459 2 65,338 |
15xx | Totsl non-cument sssets 1592811 33 1334 851 31
Izox |Total asssis 54 720 068 10D 54300 330 10D

Chairman: He-Hsun Chen

(The sccompanying notes are a0 intesral pan of the consolidstad financial ststsments)

Manager: He-Hsun Chen
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Enslish Translsnon of Consolidsted Finencis] Sterements Orizmalty Issued in Chinsss
E-LEAD EL ECTRONIC CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BAT ANCE SHEETS (CONTINUEDY
For the years ended 31 Dacember 2004 and 2023
(Expressed m Thoussneds of New Tarwan Daollars)

Lishilines and Equity 31 December 2024 31 Decsmber 2023
Code Accounting Irams Notes Amount i Amount R
Current lintilities
2100 | Shori-t=rm loans 4610 5530,07E 12 5738155 17
2130 | Centract liabilitiss - current 618 17184 - 16,038 -
2150 | Naotes payable 162 - 1,558 -
2170 | Accounts payable 7 556,804 e 500 3E8 12
100 | Other payables 6117 313834 | 278359 ]
2230 | Current income tmx abilines 4622 111,713 2 3,718
2311 | Corporats bonds memmng within ene vear or exercisable for put opuons 812 207 476 ] - -
1399 | Other current lighilines 46187 E528 - 9268 -
M=x| Totel current lisbilities 188579 40 LS57.305 35
Non-current linbdlities
2530 | Bonds payahls 4612 - - 01 530 7
2540 | Lon=-rarm loans 613 200,000 4 210,000 5
2570 | Deferred wmx Habiligss 44622 60,237 2 64, 608 1
2640 | Wer defined ben=fir oblizanon - non-carment 4414 5B075 1 T340 2
2670 | Ovher non-current liskilines 46187 213 - 4,851
25xx| Toil non-curent hnbilites 371125 7 H3T 15
Do | Toml lishilites 2206804 47 1203124 50
31xx |Equity atmibutabls to owners of the parent company 4615
3100 | Capiml
3110| Common stk 1227 885 16 L227.985 . |
Bond conversion entrflement cernficans 12 -
3200 | Additionn] Fxid-in Capital 0108 10 440,012 10
3300 | Remmed spminss
3310| Legzalreserve 150,303 5 227281 §
3320 | Specialreserve 46,085 b 30058 I
31350 | Unspproprist=d retamed samings 321837 11 JEE LT T
Subiotal 8183315 17 556,164 13
3400 | Ohsr componsnt of equity
3410| Exchsnge diffsrences on manslation of forzizn operatons 22878 - (41,301} (1)
30| Unrealized zains or losses measurad a1 fair value through ether comprehensive income 4247 - (4.604) -
Subtotal 18,831 - [46,055) 1)
3w | Tomml equity 2 514,067 53 1 187,106 ]
Toml abilities and aquity 54720966 100 54.300.230 100

Chairman: Hui-Hwun Chen

(The accompanying notes are &0 mtezrsl part of the consalidstzd financial sist=ments)

Mansger: Hui-Hsun Chen
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Engtich Translation of C

i Fmaneial 5

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
{Expressed m Thousands of New Tarwan Dellars, Except for Eamings per Shars)

Origmally Issued in Chinace

2024
Coda Accounting Items Naotas Amount
4000 |Revenues 46167 54623396
50010 |Operatng costs 6197 (3.435.963)
5900 |Gross profit 1197427
Operating expenses 6.19.7
6100 | Sales and marketing expenses (174.169) ) (121,168) @
6200 | General and admmistrative expenses 217352 (8] (197,148) 3
6300 | Rasearch and development expanses (346,799) ()] (316,620) ®
6450 | Expected credit losses 4617 (10,018) -
6000 | Subtotal (748,537
6900 Operating profit 448 895
[N mg income and 6207
Interest meoms 11375 - 12206 -
Other meoms 27,025 1 36,220 1
Other gams 19,818 - 10,925 -
Fmanee costs (34,836) (8] (35,070) (1)
Share of profits or losses of associates and jomnt ventures recopmzed under the equity method 67 (2.997) - 2 -
7 Subtotal 20,385 - 24783 -
7900 (Income bafore tax 469280 10 173330 T
7950 (Income tax expense 4622 (89,778 )] (40.738) [4)]
£200 [Net mcoma 379,502 8 132 592 6
£300 |Other comprehensie ncoms 621
£310 | Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8311 | Remeasursments on dsfined benafit plans 6,796 - (2959 -
£316 (mcome M7 = (1,082) -
8349 | Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified subsequenthy 622 (1.359) - 592 -
8360 | Items that may be reclassified subszquently to profit or loss
§361 | Exchangze diff: on 1 of forsign op 80,468 2 (6.308) -
£399 | Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsaquantly 612 (16,199) - 1,261 -
£300 |Total other comprahensive incoms, nat of tax 70,153 2 (8,496) -
8300 |Total comprehensiva incoms §449 655 10 5224 096 6
E600 |Net mncoms attributable to:
£610 | Ovwner of parsat $379.502 $232,592
£620 | Non-controling interasts -
$379.502 $232 592
5700 |Comprehensive ncome attnbutable to:
E710 | Ovwnsr of parsat $449 655 §224.096
£720 | Non—controling interests -
$449 655 $224.086
Eaminzs per shars (NT3) 613
9750 | Basic eamings per shars $3.09
9350 | Diluted sarminss per share 53
(The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the hidated fimancial 3]

Chatrman: Hs-Hsun Chen
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Manager: Ha-Hsun Chen

Acemumting Supervisor Pi-Huan Chen




English Translation of Cansolidated Finanrial Originally Issued in Chinese
E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the years ended 31 Dacamber 1004 and 2023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollers)

Equity attributable to ovwners of the parent company

Retained ezrnings Otther Component of aquity
Unrzalized gains
Troms (h%aes) an equty
mstruments
Exchangs measurad at far
Bond convarsion Additional differences on valus throush othsr
entitflement paid-m Unappropriated | translation of forsizn comprehensire
Commaon stock capial Lazal raserre Special reserve ratamed sarninzs operations incoms Total Equty
Code 3110 3130 3200 3310 3320 3350 410 3420 IXMX

Al |Balance as st I Jamuary §1,227985 5- §449.022 5108938 §19,536 $183.446 5(36.344) 5(3.612) 51,048 969
Bl |Legalresemve 18,343 (18.345) -
B3 |Special reserve 20,420 (20,420 -
BS |Common stock cash dividends (85.959) (585.959)
D1 |Net income for 2023 231,592 231,592
D3 |Other comprehensive income for 2023 (2367) (5.047) (1.082) (8.496)
D5 |Toml comprehensive meome for 2023 - - - - - 230,225 (3.47) (1.082) 124,096
Z1 |Balance as st 31 Dacember 2023 §1217085 5- $440.022 $127 281 §19.056 §188.947 ${41391) £(4.694) 81187106
Al |Balance ssat 1 January 2024 51,227,985 5- 3449002 $227 281 §39,956 3188947 5(41.391) $(4,694) 31,187,106
Bl |Lezalreserve 23022 (23,022) -
Bl |Specislreservs 6,129 (6,129) -
B3 |Common siock cash dividends (122,798) (122,798)
D1 |MNet income for 2024 379,502 379,502
D3 |Other comprehensive income for 2024 3437 64.269 447 70,153
D3 |Toml comprehensive mcome for 2024 - - - - - 384,939 64.269 447 449,653
Il |Comversion of convertbles bonds 12 87 99
Z1 (Balance asat 31 December 2074 51,227,985 512 3445.109 $150,303 §46,083 $321,937 512,878 $(4.247) 31.514,062

Chatrman: He-Hsun Chen

(The accompanymg notes are an mtegral part of the consolidated fmaneial statements)

Manager:

Hsi-Hsun Chen
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Aceounting Supervisor: Bi-Husn Chen




Enslish Tramslstion of Consolideted Finsneinl Statements Originally Tssusd in Chiness
E-LEAD ELECTRONIC €O, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Far the years ended 31 Decembar 3024 snd 2023
(Exprassed in Thousands of Mew Taivwan Dellars)

Codz I=m 2034 013

AAAS (Cash flows from operstms actvibss:

AD0010| Met profit before mx from contimune operation 5460 280 5273 330
AlDDOO| NWet ncome befors mx for the perod 460 250 173 330
AT0000 Adjusmment for-

AT00I0| Incoms and ewpensa jrems ¢

AZDI00 Depreciation 140,107 124,686
AZ0I00 Amortizatien 12,660 18,190
AT0300 Expacted cradir loss 10,016 15.070
ATO400 {Zam) loss on finencial ssseis and Lsbilitss at fxr valos doouzh profit or loss (2,147) 414
AZ0900 Interest snpense 34,838 35070
ATI200 Tnterest incoms (11375 (12_206)
A2TI00 Share of prefit of subsidisrizs associstes and jomnt venmres nsine the squity method 2907 (i)
A22500(  Gain om disposal of property, plant and squipman 3,235) [141)
AZTZE0D Lass (gnin) on disposal of ntanzible sssets in (4.248)
AT2000 Lass on dispossl of other assets 445 -
A30000| Chanz=s in assets/Tisbiliti=s r=inted 1o operstine activitizs:

A31130 Incresse innotes r2caivatls (173,354) (38.333)
A3N150 Incresse n sccounrs recsivable (206 374) (193 630)
A3L1ED Deacrzasz i other raceivablas 11,034 25,684
A31200 Decraas: in invenmories 200 548 99,103
A3I230 (Increass) decreass I PrepayIEnts {1,742} 25,643
AZIZ40 (Increass) decrease m other cument assets 37,128) 3,080
A2NTS Incresse in conmect habilites 245 6,763
A317130|  (Decresse) incresse in notas payshls (1,396) 1.558
A3I2I50 Increase in accounts payabls 77,606 94,851
A32IED Incresse in other payabias 31000 57638
A32730 (Diecraase) ncrease in other ourent lisbilities (1,194) 1,552
A3TM0 Decreas= m net defined bensfit oblizzton (8.731) (10.060)
A33000 Cash providad by operstions 573,552 516.64
A33L00 TImterest recaived 11,780
A33300 Interest paid (31.246)
A33300 Incoms tax paid (37.656)
AASSL Net cash provided by opersting sctivitias 485,337 462,541

{Contmmad)
(Ths accompanying notes zre an meezral part of the 3]

Chatrman: Hes-Ham Chan Manazer: Hsi-Ham Chen Accoumting Supervisor: Fi-Huan Chen
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English Translstion of Parent Company Only Finaneis] Satements Oripimalty Issued m Chinese
E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARTES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS {Contirmad)
For the years ended 31 Decsmber 2004 and 2023
(Exprassed in Thousands of Mew Taiwan Daollars)

Code Tr=m 2024 . thi ]
{Connmmad)

BHBB |Cash flows from investing scivines:

BOIEDD | Acquisition of investments sccountad for using the equity method (4401) -
BO2700 | Acquisition of property, plant end equipment (243,214 (166,001}
BO2E00 | Disposal of property, plant and equipment T11E 6E5
BO4300 | Acquizition of intansihle assats (11.844) (12844
BO4600 | Drsposal of mtangible assats 1308 4366
BOS700 | Incresss in other nen-coment ass=s (55.514) (12,1000
BOGE00 | Decrsass in ather non-Cmrent assers 12909 18067
BOTS00 | Dividends received = M1
BEBB ‘Wet cash nsed n mvestine activites (303,560) (166,585)
CCCC |Cash flows from finencing acivites:

CO0100 | Incresse in shore-t=rm loams 1471328 1249737
C00200 | Decresss in short-t=mm loans (L.674.486) {1,070.643)
CO1600 | Acouisition of lonz-term loans 200,000 -
01700 | Repayment of lons-term loans (210,000) (400)
C03000 | Incresse in depesits recerved 13 =
CO3100 | Dacrasse m deposits raceivad - @
€04020 | Repaymens of leasshold principal (4.207) 2,611y
CH300 | Incresse in other non-current abilities 1 -
04400 | Diecraase in other non-cirent Habilitiss - )
€04500 | Dismiburion of cash dividands (122,798) (85.959)
CCOC | Net cash (nsad m) providsd by finsncime scrivitiss (340,149) 59618
DDDD |Effert of snchanes mte chanees on cazh snd cash squivalanes 70,014 (8.306)
EEEE |(Deecrease) incresse in cash and cash equivalsnts (BE,638) 334768
E00100 |Cash snd cash equivalants st beginning of period E52,008 443,730
E00200 | Cash and cash equivalents st end of period 5764 340 5852 008

{Th2 sccompanying nofes are an inteeral part of the consolidsted finsncial statements)

Cheirmsn Hei-Haumn Chen Mansger Hsi-Hum Chen Accounting Supsrvisor Pi-Husn Chen
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To E-LEAD Electronic Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of E-LEAD
Electronic Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) as of 31 December 2024 and 2023, and the related
parent company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, and notes to the parent company only
financial statements, including the summary of material accounting policies (together “the
parent company only financial statements”).

In our opinion, the parent company only financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 31 December 2024 and
2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023, in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement
Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on
Auditing of the Republic of China; Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of
China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Norm. Based on our audits and the report(s) of other auditors, we believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of 2024 parent company only financial statements. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Allowance for losses on accounts receivable

As of 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable and allowance for
losses were NT$768,837 thousand and NT$205 thousand, respectively, and the net accounts
receivable accounted for 21% of total assets, which was significant to the Company. As the
allowance for losses is measured by the expected amount of credit losses over the life of the
asset, the assumptions used in the measurement involve significant management judgement.
We therefore determined this a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures include, but are not limited to, obtaining an understanding of, and
testing the effectiveness of, the internal control system established by management over the
collection of accounts receivable; Analyzing changes in accounts receivable and changes in
turnover rates over the period and testing the collection of accounts receivable after the period
to assess recoverability; Review the breakdown of accounts receivable at the end of the period
and recalculate the reasonableness of the allowance for losses on accounts receivable based on
the classification of individual credit groups and the expected loss rate as assessed by
management. We have also considered the appropriateness of the disclosure of accounts
receivable in Notes 5 and 6 to the parent only financial statements.

Evaluation of allowance for losses on decline in value of inventories and obsolescence of
inventories (including inventories of subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method)

The inventories of the Company and those of its subsidiaries accounted for using the equity
method are material to the financial statements. Due to the uncertainty arising from rapid
changes in product technology and market demand, the allowance for losses on decline in
value and obsolescence of inventories involve significant management judgment, we
therefore determined this a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures include, but are not limited to, obtaining an understanding of, and
testing the effectiveness of, management's internal control over inventory, including obtaining
an understanding of the reasonableness of management's policy for the allowance for losses
on decline in value and obsolescence of inventories; assessing management's inventory
planning, selecting significant inventory locations and conducting physical observations of
inventory counts to confirm the quantity and condition of inventories; testing the adequacy of
the allowance for losses on decline in value of inventories. This includes testing the
reasonableness of the net realizable value of inventories by reviewing a sample of evidence
relating to the purchase and sale of inventories, obtaining a sample of inventory ageing
schedules to test the correctness of the ageing calculations and recalculating the
reasonableness of the allowance for losses on obsolescence of inventories. We also considered

the appropriateness of the disclosures in Notes 5 and 6 to the individual financial statements.
23



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent
Company Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company
only financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the ability to continue as a going concern of the Company, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Company.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of 2024 parent only financial statements
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

/s/Huang, Tzu Ping

/s/Lo, Wen Chen

Ernst & Young, Taiwan

10 March 2025

Notice to Readers
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position,

results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in
the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit
such parent company only financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of
China.

Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and report of independent auditors are
not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. As the financial statements are
the responsibility of the management, Ernst & Young cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the
English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Finsncisl Statements Ongmally Issued in Chinese
E1EADELECTRONIC CO., LTD
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
Faor the years endad 31 Deacember 2014 and 1023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

AnsEfs 31 December 2024 31 Decamber 2023
Codz Accounting [rems Notes Amount % Amgunt %
Current assets
1100 | Cash =nd cash equivalzats 4461 5384,960 11 5512834 15
1110 | Finencizl zssets at fair value through profit or loss - curent 4482 35035 - 3,230 -
1150 | Notes receivable, net 4 80 - 1366 -
1170 | Accouns reczsivable, met 463 137,757 4 194 510 5
1180 | Accounts receivable - relst=d partiss nat 4637 630,875 17 440 731 13
1200 | Otherreczivables 4 6,243 - 8,201 -
1210 | Odher receivables - related parties 47 135,680 T 4,681 -
130x | Inventories 164 140116 4 103,241 L]
1410 | Prepaymenms 14,616 - 11,052 -
1420 | Prapaymsnrs - ralated partiss 7 5310 - 28,185 1
1470 | Other current assess 3243 - 841 -
1lxx Total current assets 1.577.874 43 1.419.002 4
Non-current assets
Financisl sssets a1 fair velue through other comprehensmre
1517 INCOmE - Non-CITent 44835 1353 - oo -
1550 | Investments accounted for nsing the squity method 448468 1378 833 37 1359523 EL
1600 | Property, plant and aquipment 4678 652,530 18 6E4,67 10
1755 | Righr-of-uss as=ts 46167 1,114 - 1127 -
1780 | Inmngible sssets 4 19 584 i 18,064 1
1840 | Deferred mx assers 46720 22512 1 17 400 1
1000 | Other nom-current assars 4 B 975 - 13,080 -
15xx Total non-Current a5sEs 2084911 37 2,100,970 &0
Ixxx |Toml assets 53,662 TES 100 53,520,062 100
(The accompanying notes are sn mtaEral part of the parent company only finsncisl statsments)
Chatrman: Hsl-Hsun Chan Manager: Hui-Hsun Chen Accounting Supervisor: Pi-Husn Chen
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Englich Trapslation of Parant Company Only Finsncinl Ststemants Ongmelly Issned in Chinsse
E1EAD ELIECTRONIC CO., LTD

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
Far the vesrs ended 31 Decembear 2014 and 1023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taivwan Dallars)

Lisbiliti=s and Equity

31 Dacamber 2024

31 December 2023

Coda Accountme frzms Not=s Amonnt W Amoimt Wy
Current Lizbilities
2100 | Short-term loans 468 SE0.000 2 5300,000 9
2130 | Contract lizbikities - corrent 614 4,122 = 4,203 -
2170 | Accounts payablz 148844 4 178,651 3
2180 | Accounts peyable - relam=d parnes 7 44 641 1 35,040 1
2200 | Other payables ae7 182 208 5 169,351 5
2230 | Current income tax Habilitiss T3 607 2 - -
2311 | Corporstz bonds msmring within one year or exsrcisshlz for put oprions | 6.10 297476 ! - -
2390 | Ocher current lsbilitias 46167 3,643 - 3,538 -
2lxx | Total curent hebilities 835,331 2 624,733 20
Mon-currene lishilites
1531 | Bonds Payablz 6.10 - - 293 830 ]
1540 | Lonz-t=rm losns 611 200.000 & 210,000 &
2570 | Deferred ax nbiliras 4620 60,837 2 64,668 2
2640 | Wet defined bensfit oblization - non-curr=nt 4612 52 555 1 60,559 3
2670 | Orther non-cumrent Habilitizs 46147 = - 1188 =
xx Total non-currant fabilitias 313302 2 638273 18
2xxx |Tomwml hinbilines 1148723 31 1332 056 38
Edquity 1613
3100 | Capital
illo Common stock 1,237 985 34 1,127 085 35
3130 Baond convarsion entitlamanr cernficatas 12 - - -
3200 | Addirionsl Paid-in Capital 440,109 12 440,022 11
E=tpinad earnings
3310 | Lezslreserve 250,303 T 237381 7
3320 | Specislressrve 46,085 1 30,956 1
3350 | Unapproprizted remined eamings 311 837 14 188 847 g
3300 Subrol B1E.325 13 536,184 16
3400 | Other componant of equity
3210 Exchanre differences on mansiston of forsizn eparations 1T ETE 1 (41,381} (1)
3420 Unrezlized gsins or losses mersured &t fair value through
other comprehensive incoms 4247 - {4.694) =
Imxm Subtotal 1E.621 1 (44.085) [45]
Total aquity 21514082 a9 1 1E7,108 &
Ixn3x |Toml Lisbilines and equity 53,662,785 100 53,320,062 100

Chairman: Hsi-Hsun Chen

(Th= sccompanying notes are 50 inragral part of the parent company only financisl stataments)

Mepager: Hsi-Hwun Chen
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Englizh Translation of Parsnt Company Onky Financisl Seatsments Orzmslty Issned in Chiness

E-LEAD ELTECTRONIC CO_ LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years endad 31 December 2024 and 3023

(Expressad in Thousands of Mew Taiwan Dollars, Except for Eamings per Shars)

2014 013
Cods Arcounting f=ms Nos Amoumt i Amgunt %
4000 (Revem=s 46147 52,1E0.638 100 52,193,837 100
5000 |Opersting costs 6.17.7 (1.350,336) {62y (1.507,743) | _ (63
5900 |Gross profit 230302 3t 683 804 31
5210 |Add: Realized gein or less from sales 167356 3 148731 7
3920 |Lass: Unrealized sxm or lows from salss (125,674 (& (167,356) [¢1]
5950 |Gross profit, ne 850,954 'l 665260 | 30
(Operating sxpenses §17.7
6100 | Sales and murkesing sxpenses (64,242) @) (47,70E) [
6200 | Genersl and sdministrative expansas (157,00 5] (140,439) ®
6300 | Research and developmens expenses (309137 {14 (277 6043 {13)
6450 | Expecied credit gxins (losses) 4615 1,003 - (7400 -
6000 | Subroml (320 383) (el (466.581) | _ (21)
6200 |Opersting profit 351,300 18 108,628 2
T000 |Non-operarme income snd sxpenses 6187
T100 | Tnrerest incoms 13,870 1 14783 1
TO10 | Other Incoms 33,033 1 ELRo 2
T020 | Other mins or losses 37148 3 14,751 -
T050 | Fence costs [13,702) (¥ (14.392) 1)
7070 | Shars of prefits or lossss of subsidisries. associstes and joint [-1.] 2,606 1 HMATE 3
veEnmr=s accoumesd for under the aquity method
TOOO |  Subtot] 115,843 5 104 24 5
7200 [Incoms before mx 470,442 21 303,532 14
T#50 |Income ax sxpense 4620 (90,2400 4 ool | 3)
8200 [Net incoms 370502 17 132 507 11
(Oxher comprehensime meoms 419
8310 | Trzms thet will not be raclassifisd subsaquentty to
profit or loss
8311 | Remessurements on defined bensfir plans 6,708 - (203509 -
8316 | Umrealizad gain or loss on squity Insrumsnis messimed 51 447 - (LOEZ) -
fair value thronzh other comprehensive incoms
8329 | Income ooxrelsted to items that will not be raclassifisd 6.0 (1359 502
subsaquently - -
8360 | Itzmes thet may be reclessifisd subsequenthy to profit or lows
8341 | Enchangs differences on translanon of foreizn operstons 0462 4 (8.308) -
8300 ( Income tax ralarad to items that may ba reclssifiad 620 (16,198) (1) 1261
subsequantly - -
8300 |Total ather comprehensive income | post tax 70,153 3 (E406) -
83500 |Towml comprehansive moomes S0 655 1] 5274 005 11
Exmnings par share (NT5) 671
0750 | Basic apmines per shars 5309 5150
9850 | Dilurzd ssmimes per share 30 S187
(The accompanying notes are an int2gal part of the parant compeny only finsncisl ststements)
Chairman: Hsi-Han Chen MsmnEer Hai-Hom Chen Arcountine Supervisor Fi-Hosn Chen
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Enziish Translation of Parent Company Only Fimancial Statements Orizimally Issued m Chinsse

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO. LID.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Far the years ended 31 December 3024 and 2013
(Expressed in Thousands of New Tamvan Dallars)

Eestuinad eamines Ot component of equiny
Unrzalived mains
(loszas) on aquity
Jisttaniia iy
Exchanee measred ar fair
Bond conversion Additional drffersnces oo value throuzh othar
paid-in Unappropriated manshsion of comprhanmsive
Iism Common stock camificaes capitsl Lezal resarve Spacial msmve renimad sEuines foreign opeatons inoms Total Equity
Cods 3100 Ehel ] 3200 3310 3520 3350 10 347 I
Al (Balmes as at | Tammary 1023 §1277985 5- 440,007 $705.0346 519,536 5183445 H3I6344) $(3.617) 1B 060
Bl |Legal res=ve i, 35 (18345 -
B3 |Special resarve 20, 420 (20,420} =
B3 |Commen stock cash dividends {85,959} (85.958)
Dl |¥et imcome for 2003 13 593
D3 |Other comprehensive inrome for 2023 (5.047) (1.08%) (E408)
D5 |Toml comprehensive meoms for 2023 - i = - (5.047) (1.083) 124006
Z] |Balmnce asat 31 Decamber 223 51337985 5- 540,002 5327381 538.936 5285847 41381} 4824y 32157106
Al |Balanceas ar 1 Famuary 2024 31237985 5- 49002 21737381 530058 528847 H41301) S(4.804) 51 187.106
Bl |Legalrassrva 300 (23,007} -
B3 |Special rasarve 6120 (6,129} -
B |Common stock cash dividends (122708} (122.TRE)
Dl |Nerinome for 2004 379,302 378,301
D3 |Other comprahensive income for 2024 3437 260 H“r
5 |Toml comprebensre mcome for 2024 = Z i - - 384039 64 260 447
Il |Comversion of converibls bands 12 87 L
Z] |Balmnceasat 31 December MIT4 51227985 $2 $40 102 3250303 544,083 5521937 S12ET8 44T $1.514.062

Charmar: He-Hyun Chen

{Th= accompanyins ootes 2y 2 mtegral part of the parent company ooty fimencia] satsments)

Mareger Hs-Ham Chan
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Finaneial Statements Ongmally Issued in Chinese
E-1EAD ELECTRONIC CO.. LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
Far the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
(Expressed m Thousands of New Tarwan Dollars)

2024 2023
Code Item

AAAA |Cash flows from operating activities:
A00010 | Net profit before tax from contimuing operation $470,442 $303532
A10000 Net income before tax for the period 470442 303,532
A20000 Adjustment for:
A20010 Income and expense mems :
A20100 Depreciation 58976 49 770
A0200 Amertization 9,700 9228
A20300 Expected credit losses (reversal gains) / losses (1,023) 740
A20400 (Gam) loss on financial assets and habilities at far value throngh profit or loss (363) 391
A20200 Interest expense 13,702 14 892
A21200 Interest income (13.670) (14 283)
A77400 Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and jomnt ventures under

the equity method {28.696) (54,878)
A22500 Gam on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.843) (810
A2IE00 Gain on disposal of intangible asssts (1,295) (4,246)
A23900 Unrealized (gain) loss from sales (41,682) 20,625
A20900 Other items (1,309) (1,368)
AS0000 Changes mn assets/habilities relating to operating activities:
A31130 Decreaze (increase) in notes receivabls 606 (1339
AS1150 Decrease in accounts receivable 37776 76,214
A31160 (Increase) decrease m accounts recervable - related parties (181,144) 75,103
A31IED Decreasze (Inecrease) m other recervables 1,704 (262)
A31190 (Incresse) decrease in other receivables - related parties (3,200) 6,782
A31200 Decrease in mventories 54,125 11,106
A31230 Decrease in prepayments 16,792 28.602
A31240 (Increase) decrease in other current assets (504) 3304
A32125 Decreasze in contract Labilities (81) (3.000)
A32150 Decrease m accounts payable (29,807 (26.792)
A352160 Increase in accounts payable - related parties 5,701 23188
AS2180 Increase in other payables 13,283 12,575
AT2330 Increase in other current liabilities i6 220
AR2240 Decrease m net defined benefit oblization (10.208) (10,746)
A33000 Cash provided by operations 188,016 516,562
A33100 Interest received 10,025 14,783
A33300 Interest paid (9.049) (10,019
A33500 Income tax paid {40,531) (28.927)
AAAA Net cash provided by operating activities 34E 461 492 300

(Continued)
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements)
Chairman: Hsi-Haun Chen Manager: Hsi-Hsun Chen Accounting Superviser: Pi-Huan Chen
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Ongmally Issued m Chimese
E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO_, LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
(Expressed mn Thousands of New Tarwan Dollars)

2024 2023
Code Ttem
(Contimued)

BEBB |Cash flows from mvestng actrvities:
BO0O010 | Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive ncome - (206)
BOI1800 | Acqmsion of mvestments accounted for using the equty method (8.289) (329.433)
B01900 | Disposal of mvestments accounted for using the equity method 7446 -
BO2700 | Acqusition of property, plant and equipment (30,013) (59.,002)
B02800 | Disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,848 3.399
B04300 | Increase in other recervable - related parties (223 900) =
B04400 | Decrease i other receivable - related parties - 154315
BO4500 | Acqusition of mtangible assets {12,505) (11.973)
B04600 | Disposal of mtangible assets 1,396 4366
BO6800 | Decrease in other non-current assets 4111 301
B07600 | Dmvidends received 135544 342
BEEB Net cash used in mvesting activities (120.362) (238.521)
CCCC  |Cash flows from financing activities:
CO0100 | Increase in short-term loans 710,000 560.000
C00200 | Decrease m short-term loans (930,000) (440,000)
CO1600 | Acqmsthon of long-term loans 200,000 -
CO01700 | Repayment of long-term loans (210,000) (400)
C04020 | Repayment of leasehold principal (1,176) (L1177
C04300 | Increase i other non-current habilities 1 -
C04500 | Distmbution of cash dividends (122 798) (85.933)
ccce Net cash (used m ) provided by financing activities (353 973) 32464
EEEE |(Decrease) merease in cash and cash equivalents (125 874) 286,272
E00100 |Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of peniod 512,834 236 562
E00200 |Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $386,960 $512.834

(The accompanymg notes are an mtegral part of the parent company only financial statements)

Chairman: Hsi-Hsun Chen Manager: Hsi-Hsun Chen Accounting Supervisor: Pi-Huan Chen
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Attachment 2

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE

2024
Unit: NT$
Item Amount
Beginning retained earnings 136,998,389
o 379,501,884

(Less): Net profit after tax for 2024
Other comprehensive income or loss for
2024 - remeasurement 5,437,023
on defined benefit plans

Appropriated items:
(38,493,891)

Special reserve 46,084,591
Subtotal 529,527,996

Distributable items:

Dividend to shareholders - Cash dividends
(NT$2 per share)

Unappropriated retained earnings 283,928,644

Legal reserve

(245,599,352)

Note: 1. The earnings distribution shall be made in the order of the 2024
earnings first.

2. If the number of outstanding shares changes due to factors such as the
Company’s repurchase of its own shares or the conversion of corporate
bonds, thereby affecting the shareholders’ dividend distribution ratio, it
Is proposed that the shareholders’ meeting authorize the Chairman to
handle such matters with full discretion.

Chairman: Hsi-Hsun Chen  General Manager: Hsi-Hsun Chen  Accounting Supervisor: Pi-Huan Chen
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Attachment 3

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
Comparison Table of Amendments to the “Aurticles of Incorporation”

After the Amendment

Before the Amendment

Explanation

If the Company has made profit in the
year, appropriate no less than 1% as
employees’ compensation (of which not
less than 0.5% shall be allocated to
base-level employees), and no more
than 5% as remuneration to the
Directors. The  Company  shall
appropriate for covering carryforward
loss, where applicable. (omitted)

If the Company has made profit in the
year, appropriate no less than 1% as
employees’ compensation, and no more
than 5% as remuneration to the Directors.
The Company shall appropriate for
covering carryforward loss, where
applicable. (omitted)

Amended
Provision
Content

The Articles of Incorporation was
established on 4 June 1983. The first
amendment was made on 31 August
1985. ...The twenty-sixth amendment

was made on 11 June 2025.

The Articles of Incorporation was
established on 4 June 1983. The first
amendment was made on 31 August
1985. ...The twenty-fifth amendment was
made on 16 June 2023,

Amendment
date added.
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Attachment 4

Unit: in NT$ thousand

Remuneration to directors

SUM OF A+B+C+D

Remuneration received by directors for concurrent service as an employee

AND RATIO TO NET Sum of A+B+C+D+E+F+G
INCOME . . Remuneration
Director profit-sharing Expenses and Salary, rewards, and and ratio to net income ived fi
i i 3 ) ) i received from
Base co('n:‘;:)(ilews;)uon (&) ;e;":?:igfqp(aBy) compensation (C) perquisites (D) (Note 10) special disbursements Retlrel(T:(;nt pay Employee profit-sharing compensation (G) (No (Note 10) )
P (Note 3) (Noted) (E) (Note 5) investee
enterprises
(=] .
Title Name > > > > > S > All consolidated > other than
= = = = = 173 = =
4 8 4 8 4 8 4 8 4 8 % 4 8 The Company entities - 8 subsidiaries or
8 > § 8 > § 8 > § 8 > § 8 > § = & 8 > § (Note 7) 8 > § from the parent
9 g g 9 g F 9 g F 9 g g 9 g F 2 2 9 g g 9 g g
3 & 2 3 & 2 3 s 2 3 & 2 3 & 2 9 2 3 & 2 3 & 2 company
2 2 b 38 b 8 b 2 b & 3 = b 2 b &8
§ 2 § 2 § 2 § 2 § 2 S o § 2 Amount | Amount | Amount | Amount § 2 (Note 11)
ES ES ES ES £ 2 Z £ in cash in stock in cash in stock £
@ @ @ @ @ =] @ @
w w w w w a w w
~
. Hsi-Hsun 1,723,187 1,723,187 11,003,167 11,003,167 None
Chairman Chen 0 0 0 0 1,705,187 1,705,187 18,000 18,000 0.45% 0.45% 8,666,271 8,666,271 0 0 613,709 0 613,709 0 2.90% 2.90%
Deputy Hsi-Tsang 1,723,187 1,723,187 8,481,139 8,481,139 None
Chairman Chen 0 0 0 0 1,136,792 1,705,187 18,000 18,000 0.45% 0.45% 6,353,336 6,353,336 0 0 404,616 0 404,616 0 2.23% 2.23%
. Teng-Kuei 1,166,792 1,166,792 1,166,792 1,166,792 None
Director Chen 0 0 0 0 1,136,792 1,136,792 30,000 30,000 0.31% 0.31% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.31% 0.31%
" Ming-Shou 1,154,792 1,154,792 1,154,792 1,154,792 None
Director Lin 0 0 0 0 1,136,792 1,136,792 18,000 18,000 0.30% 0.30% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.30% 0.30%
" 1,154,792 1,154,792 1,154,792 1,154,792 None
Director Yu-Tzu Fu 0 0 0 0 1,136,792 1,136,792 18,000 18,000 0.30% 0.30% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.30% 0.30%
" Han-Nian Lin 580,392 580,392 580,392 580,392 None
Director x 0 0 0 0 568,392 568,392 12,000 12,000 0.15% 0.15% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.15% 0.15%
Independe Chi-Chung 612,000 612,000 612,000 612,000 None
nt Director Teai 600,000 600,000 0 0 0 0 12,000 12,000 0.16% 0.16% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.16% 0.16%
Independe Cheng-Chun 618,000 618,000 618,000 618,000 None
nt Director Chang 600,000 600,000 0 0 0 0 18,000 18,000 0.16% 0.16% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.16% 0.16%
Independe Shein-Tung 630,000 630,000 630,000 630,000 None
nt Director Wu 600,000 600,000 0 0 0 0 30,000 30,000 0.17% 0.17% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.17% 0.17%
Independe Rong-Lin 630,000 630,000 630,000 630,000 None
nt Director Jiang 600,000 600,000 0 0 0 0 30,000 30,000 0.17% 0.17% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.17% 0.17%

1. Please describe the policy, system, standards and structure in place for paying remuneration to directors and describe the relationship of factors such as the duties and risks undertaken and time invested by the directors to the amount of remuneration paid: The remuneration of the independent directors of the Company shall be in

accordance with the Articles of Incorporation or pursuant to a resolution of the shareholders' meeting and may be such as to provide for reasonable remuneration separate and distinct from that of the ordinary directors. The remuneration of such independent director may also be determined by the relevant statutory procedures to be a

fixed monthly remuneration without participation in the distribution of the Company's earnings.

2. In addition to what is disclosed in the above table, please specify the amount of remuneration received by directors in the most recent fiscal year for providing services (e.g., for serving as a non-employee consultant to the parent company /any consolidated entities /invested enterprises): None.

**Director Han-Nian Lin was dismissed on 12 June 2024
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Attachment 5

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Report on the Issuance and Conversion of the Second Domestic Secured Convertible

Corporate Bonds
31 December 2024

Types Second domestic secured convertible corporate bonds issued in 2022
Approval Date | 8 June 2022
Issue Date 7 July 2022
i 0,
Issue Amount NT$300,000 thousand, issued at 104.97% of par value and the total amount

raised was NT$314,901 thousand

Maturity Day

7 July 2025

Coupon Rate

0%

Guarantor

Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.

Trustee

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.

Implementation

Of Capital Fully executed by the third quarter of 2022
Allocation
Plans Status
Conversion The conversion price was originally NT$85 per share. and was NT$82.4 per
Price share as of 31 December 2024.

As of 31 December 2024, one bond in the principal amount of NT$100
Conversion thousand was converted into 1,213 shares of common stock at a conversion
Status price of NT$82.4 per share. The outstanding balance of unconverted bonds

amounted to NT$299,900 thousand.
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Attachment 6

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Report on Loans of Company Funds

Unit: in NT$ thousand; 31 December 2024

Collateral Limiton
Cumulative the amount
Allowance
Financial | highest Actual | Interest Reason for of funds to Total
No. Related Ending Amount of for
Lender Loan recipients statement | balance amount rate [Loan type short-term be lent to Limits
(Note 1) Party balance transaction doubtful |Item [Value
account |through the provided | band financing individual | (Note 3)
debts
month recipients
(Note 2)
0 The Company |E-LEAD Y Other $272,760| $268,680| $223,900| 2.8% [Short-term| $- Operating $- $-| $1,005,625| $1,005,625
ELECTRONIC receivables| financing needs
TECHNOLOGY funds
(JIANGSU)
CO., LTD.
0  |The Company |E-LEAD Y Other $65,660| $65,560 - - |Short-term| - Operating - -1$1,005,625( $1,005,625
ELECTRONIC receivables| financing needs
(THAILAND) funds
CO., LTD.

Note 1: The description of the numbered column is as follows:

(1) Enter O for issuer.
(2) The investee companies are numbered sequentially by company, starting with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: In accordance with the Company's capital lending procedures, loans to a single enterprise are limited to a maximum

of 40% of the Company's latest net financial statements.
Note 3: In accordance with the Company's procedures for the loaning of funds, the maximum loaning of funds is limited to a

maximum of 40% of the most recent net financial statements.
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Attachment 7

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Report on Endorsement and Guarantee

Unit: in NT$ thousand; 31 December 2024

Ceilings of Percentage of
guarantee/ accumulated Ceilings of | Guarantee/ | Guarantee/
No Guarantor endorsement| Maximum Endin Actual | Amount [guarantee amount total Endorsement | endorsement| Guarantee/
(Noté 1) (company provided to |balance for balanc% amount |of assets| to net assets guarantee/ | provided by | provided by [endorsement
name) asingle | the period provided | pledged | value from the | endorsement| parentto | subsidiaries | in China
entity latest financial (Note 4) subsidiaries | to parent
(Note 3) statement
Company name E\?ggg
0 The Company |E-LEAD 2 $1,257,031| $404,010($403,020($201,510[ & - 16.03% $1,257,031 Y N Y
ELECTRONIC
TECHNOLOGY
(JIANGSU) CoO.,
LTD.
Note 1: The description of the numbered column is as follows:
(1) Enter O for issuer.
(2) The investee companies are numbered sequentially by company, starting with the Arabic numeral 1.
Note 2: There are seven types of relations between the endorser and the person to whom the guarantee/ endorsement is made,

Note 3:

Note 4:

as indicated by the following types:

(1) A company with which it does business.

(2) A company in which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than 50% of the voting shares.

(3) A company in which more than 50% of the voting shares are held, directly or indirectly, by the Company.

(4) A company in which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than 90% of the voting shares.

(5) A company guaranteed by all contributing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding by virtue of a joint
investment relationship.

(6) A company which is mutually insured under a contract between peers or co-founders for the purposes of touting.
(7) Inter-operators are bound by the Consumer Protection Act to guarantee the performance of contracts for the sale
of pre-sale properties.

In accordance with the Company's endorsement and guarantee procedures, the limit of endorsement and guarantee for
a single enterprise shall not exceed 50% of the net value of the Company's latest financial statements

In accordance with the Company's endorsement and guarantee procedures, the maximum endorsement and guarantee
shall not exceed 50% of the net value of the most recent financial statements.
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Attachment 8

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Report on Significant Transactions with Affiliates

The significant purchase and sales and acquisition or disposal of assets from or to any
single related party are as follows:

1. The value of transaction with related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or
20% of the additional paid-in capital:

Unit: in NT$ thousand; 31 December 2024

Circumstances under which the terms
of the transaction differ from those of a Notes and accounts Note
Intercompany transactions normal transaction and the reasons receivable (payables)
Percentage of
total accounts
Percentage of and notes
Counterparty Purchases total purchase receivables
Company name name Relation (sales) | Amount (Sales) Terms [ Unit price Description Balance (payables)
The Company |E-LEAD Parentand |Sales $329,753 15.06%]| Within 60|Same as Same as general trading $53,238 6.92%
ELECTRONIC |subsidiary days general condition
(THAILAND) trading
CO., LTD. condition
The Company |E-LEAD Parentand |Sales 658,948 30.09%| Within  [Same as The Company's 100% 529,205 68.76%
ELECTRONIC |subsidiary 120 days |general owned subsidiary required
TECHNOLOG trading a longer period of time to
Y(JIANGSU) condition |develop the automotive
CO., LTD. electronics market in
China therefore a more
lenient collection policy
was granted
E-LEAD SUZHOU FAR|Sub-subsidi |Sales 133,774 5.71%]|Within 60 |Same as Same as general trading 93,315 9.47%
ELECTRONIC [HORIZON aries and days general condition
TECHNOLOG |TRADING accompanyi trading
Y(@JIANGSU) |CO., LTD. ng Note 7 condition
CO., LTD.
The Company |E-LEAD Parentand |Purchases| 239,684 31.15%| Within 75| Same as Same as general trading 15,615 8.07%
ELECTRONIC |subsidiary days general condition
TECHNOLOG trading
Y(JIANGSU) condition
CO., LTD.
The Company |E-LEAD Parentand |Purchases| 299,735 24.62%| Within 75(Same as Same as general trading 1,835 0.84%
ELECTRONIC |subsidiary days general condition
TECHNOLOG trading
Y(JIANGSU) condition
CO., LTD.

2. Acquisition or disposal of assets: None.
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Appendix 1

Article 1:

Article 2:

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
Articles of Incorporation

Chapter 1 General Provisions

The Company shall be incorporated under the Company Act of the Republic of
China, and its name shall be E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
The Company's business scope includes:

1.

10.
11.
12.
13.

14.

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

Manufacturing and trading of various transformers, power converters,
chargers, DC power supplies, power stabilizers, and emergency power
supplies.

Manufacturing and trading of microcomputer application products,
microcomputer peripheral equipment, and related products.
Manufacturing, processing, and trading of various automotive electrical
accessories, audio equipment, air conditioners, heaters, ovens, and other
household appliances.

Manufacturing, processing, and trading of rewinders, accessories for
recording and playback machines, televisions, washing machines,
refrigerators, dishwashers, vacuum cleaners, and related products.
Manufacturing, processing, and trading of camera accessories and mobile
phone accessories.

CC01020 Electric Wires and Cables Manufacturing.

F401021 Restrained Telecom Radio Frequency Equipment and Materials
Import.

CCO01101 Restrained Telecom Radio Frequency Equipment and Materials
Manufacturing.

F113070 Wholesale of Telecom Instruments.

F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials.

F213060 Retail Sale of Telecom Instruments.

C805050 Industrial Plastic Products Manufacturing.

CC01010 Manufacture of Power Generation, Transmission and
Distribution Machinery.

CC01030 Electrical Appliances and Audiovisual Electronic Products
Manufacturing.

CC01060 Wired Communication Equipment and  Apparatus
Manufacturing.

CC01070 Telecommunication Equipment and Apparatus Manufacturing.
CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing.

CD01030 Motor Vehicles and Parts Manufacturing.

The trading business of import and export of the aforementioned products.
Z799999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law,
except those that are subject to special approval.
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Article 3:

Article 4:

Article 5:

Article 6:

Article 7:

Article 8:

Article 9:

Article 10:

Article 11:

Article 12:

The total amount of investments may exceed forty percent of the amount of the
paid-in capital and the board of directors is authorized to execute such
investments.

A public company shall comply with the operational procedures for
endorsements/guarantees when making endorsements/guarantees for others as
necessary for business operations.

The Company shall have its head office in Changhua County, the Republic of
China, and may, pursuant to a resolution adopted at the meeting of the Board
of Directors, set up branch offices within or outside the territory of the
Republic of China when deemed necessary.

Public announcements of the Company shall be made according to the
Company Act and relevant laws and regulations.

Chapter 2 Capital Stock

The total capital stock of the Company shall be in the amount of NT$ 2 billion,
divided into 200 million shares, at NT$ 10 each, to be fully issued. The board
of directors is authorized to issue the remaining shares in installments. The
total number of shares as mentioned above includes 5 million shares reserved
for the issuance of employee stock options.

The shares issued by the Company may be exempted from printing any share
certificate for the shares issued but shall register the issued shares with a
centralized securities depositary enterprise.

All matters related to stock affairs shall be handled in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public
Companies” and relevant laws and regulations.

Share transfer registration is suspended within 60 days prior to the convening
date of a regular shareholders’ meeting, or within 30 days prior to the
convening date of a special shareholders' meeting, or within 5 days prior to the
target date fixed by the issuing company for distribution of dividends, bonus or
other benefits.

Chapter 3 Shareholders' Meeting

Shareholders’ meeting shall be of two kinds which are regular meeting of
shareholders and special meeting of shareholders. Regular meeting of
shareholders is to be held at least once every year and shall be convened within
six months after close of each fiscal year. Special meeting of shareholders is to
be held when necessary and can be held by means of visual communication
network or other methods promulgated by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.
A shareholder may appoint a proxy, in accordance with Article 177 of the
Company Act, to attend a shareholders’” meeting in his/her/its behalf by
executing a power of attorney stating therein the scope of power authorized to
the proxy. Unless otherwise provided by the Company Act, the procedures for
proxy attendance at shareholders' meetings shall be governed by the
“Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder
Meetings of Public Companies” issued by the competent authority.

40



Article 13:

Article 14:

Article 15:

Article 16:

Article 17:

The chairman of the board of directors shall preside the shareholders' meeting.
In case the chairman of the board of directors is absent, the chairman of the
board of directors shall designate one of the directors. In the absence of such a
designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves an acting
chairman of the board of directors. Whereas for a shareholders’ meeting
convened by any other person having the convening right, he/she shall act as
the chairman of that meeting provided, however, that if there are two or more
persons having the convening right, the chairman of the meeting shall be
elected from among themselves.

Except in the circumstances otherwise provided for by act, the shareholders of
the company shall have one voting power in respect of each share in his/her/its
possession.

Resolutions at a shareholders' meeting shall, unless otherwise provided for in
the Company Act, be adopted by a majority vote of the shareholders present,
who represent more than one-half of the total number of voting shares.
Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes
of the meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the
chairman of the meeting and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the
company within twenty (20) days after the close of the meeting. The
distribution of the minutes of shareholders' meeting may be effected by means
of a public notice. The minutes of shareholders' meeting shall record the date
and place of the meeting, the name of the chairman, the method of adopting
resolutions, and a summary of the essential points of the proceedings and the
results of the meeting. The minutes shall be kept persistently throughout the
life of the company.

The attendance list bearing the signatures of shareholders present at the
meeting and the powers of attorney of the proxies shall be kept by the
company for a minimum period of at least one year.

Chapter 4 Directors and Managerial Personnels

The Company shall have 7 to 11 Directors with the term of three years. A
candidates nomination system is adopted for election of the directors of the
company. The shareholders shall elect the directors from among the nominees
listed in the roster of director candidates. Procedures for accepting
nominations of director candidates and related matters such as public
announcements shall be carried out in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations such as the Company Act and the Securities and Exchange Act. All
directors shall be eligible for re-election. The percentage of shareholdings of
all the directors is subject to the provisions separately prescribed by the
competent authority in charge of securities affairs, such provisions shall
prevail.
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Article 17-1:

Article 17-2:

Article 18:

Article 19:

Among the number of directors to be elected prescribed in the previous
paragraph, the number of independent directors shall not be less than three and
shall not be less than one-fifth of the total number of directors. The
independent and non-independent directors are elected at the same time, but in
separately calculated numbers.

Regulations governing the professional qualifications, restrictions on
shareholdings and concurrent positions held, assessment of independence,
method of nomination, and other matters for compliance with respect to
independent directors shall be prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Act
and relevant laws and regulations.

The remuneration of directors shall be determined by the board of directors
based on the level of involvement and contribution to the operations of the
Company and may be paid at such level as generally adopted by the
enterprises of the same industry.

The Company has established an audit committee in accordance with Article
14-4 of the Securities Exchange Act. The audit committee shall be composed
of the entire number of independent directors. Regulations governing exercise
by the audit committee and its independent director members of the powers
shall be prescribed by the Company Act, the Securities Exchange Act and
other applicable laws and regulations.

When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director
for any reason, the company shall hold a by-election for director at the next
following shareholders meeting.

When the number of directors falls short by one-third of the total number
prescribed by the articles of incorporation, the company shall convene a
special shareholder meeting within 60 days of the occurrence of that fact to
hold a by-election for directors.

When an independent director is dismissed for any reason, resulting in a
number of directors lower than that required under paragraph 1 or the
company's articles of incorporation, a by-election for independent director
shall be held at the next following shareholders meeting.

When all independent directors have been dismissed, the company shall
convene a special shareholder meeting to hold a by-election within 60 days
from the date on which the situation arose.

The term of office for a director or an independent director elected to fill a
vacancy shall be limited to the remaining term of the original director or
independent director.

In case no election of new directors is effected after expiration of the term of
office of existing directors, the term of office of out-going directors shall be
extended until the time new directors have been elected and assumed their
office. However, the competent authority may, ex officio, order the company
to elect new directors within a given time limit; and if no re-election is effected
after expiry of the given time limit, the out-going directors shall be discharged
ipso facto from such expiration date.
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Article 20:

Article 21:

Article 22:

Article 23:

Article 24:

The directors shall organize the board of directors. The board of directors shall
elect a chairman of the board directors from among the directors by a majority
vote at a meeting attended by over two-thirds of the directors and may also
elect in the same manner a vice chairman of the board to execute all matters of
the Company in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the Articles
of Incorporation, and resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and the board of
directors.

The operational guidelines and other important matters of the company shall
be determined by the board of directors. Except for the first meeting of each
term of the board of directors shall be convened in accordance with Article
203 of the Company Act, the meetings of the board of directors shall be
convened by the chairman of the board of directors. In case the chairman of
the board of directors is on leave or absent or can not exercise his power and
authority for any cause, the procedures for designation shall comply with
Article 208 of the Company Act.

Unless otherwise provided for in the Company Act, resolutions of the Board of
Directors shall be adopted by a majority of the directors at a meeting attended
by a majority of the directors. In case a director appoints another director to
attend a meeting of the board of directors in his/her behalf, he/she shall, in
each time, issue a written proxy and state therein the scope of authority with
reference to the subjects to be discussed at the meeting. A director may accept
the appointment to act as the proxy referred to in the preceding Paragraph of
one other director only. The use of proxies for attendance at shareholder
meetings shall comply with the relevant legal provisions. In case a meeting of
the board of directors is proceeded via visual communication network, then the
directors taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be deemed
to have attended the meeting in person.

In calling a meeting of the board of directors, a notice shall be given to each
director no later than 7 days prior to the scheduled meeting date. In the case of
emergency, a meeting of the board of directors may be convened at any time.
The notice may be effected in writing, e-mail or fax.

Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes
of the meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the
chairman of the meeting and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the
company within twenty (20) days after the close of the meeting. The minutes
of shareholders' meeting shall record the date and place of the meeting, the
name of the chairman, the method of adopting resolutions, and a summary of
the essential points of the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The
minutes shall be kept persistently throughout the life of the company; The
preparation and distribution of the minutes of shareholders’ meeting as
required in the preceding Paragraph may be effected by means of electronic
transmission.
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Article 25:

Article 26:

Article 27:

Article 27-1:

A company may have one general manager, several deputy general managers,
associate managers, and managers. The appointment, dismissal, and
remuneration of such personnel shall comply with Article 29 of the Company
Act.

Chapter 5 Accounting

At the close of each fiscal year, the Company shall prepare and present the
following statements and records to the shareholders’ meeting for approval
upon the resolution of the Board of Directors:

1. Business Report. 2. Financial Statements. 3. Surplus Earning Distribution or
Loss Off-Setting Proposals.

If the Company has made profit in the year, appropriate no less than 1% as
employees’ compensation, and no more than 5% as remuneration to the
Directors. The Company shall appropriate for covering carryforward loss,
where applicable.

The profit for the year referred to in the preceding paragraph shall refer to the
profit before tax for the year before the distribution of employees’
compensation and remuneration to directors.

The Company shall, by a resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of
board of directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors, have
the profit distributable as employees’ compensation and remuneration to
directors in addition thereto a report of such distribution shall be submitted to
the shareholders’ meeting.

Remuneration to the employees may be distributed in cash or stock.
Qualification requirements of employees, including the employees of parents
or subsidiaries of the company meeting certain specific requirements, entitled
to receive shares or cash.

When allocating its surplus profits after having paid all taxes and dues, the
company’s accumulated losses shall have been covered and the Company shall
set aside ten percent of said profits as legal reserve. In addition, special
reserves shall be set aside or reversed in accordance with the law. The
remaining balance, together with the undistributed earnings at the beginning of
the period, shall be formulated into a profit distribution proposal by the board
of directors, and submitted to the shareholders' meeting for resolution on the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The total amount of dividends distributed annually shall not be less than 10%
of the distributable earnings for the year. However, if the accumulated
distributable earnings are less than ten percent of the paid-in capital, dividends
may be withheld. Additionally, the proportion of cash dividends distributed
shall not be less than ten percent of the total shareholder dividends.
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Article 27-2:  The Company may, upon the approval of at least two-thirds of the voting rights

Article 28:

Article 29:

represented at a shareholders meeting attended by shareholders representing a
majority of the total issued shares, transfer the shares bought back to its
employees at a price lower than the actual repurchase price or issue employee
stock warrants at a price lower than the market price. However, this shall be
done in compliance with relevant laws and regulations and with the approval
of the shareholders’ meeting.

Chapter 6 Supplementary Provisions

In regard to all matters not provided for in these Articles of Incorporation, the
Company Act shall govern.

The Articles of Incorporation was established on 4 June 1983. The first
amendment was made on 31 August 1985. The second amendment was made
on 3 October 1987. The third amendment was made on 2 June 1989. The
fourth amendment was made on 28 August 1989. The fifth amendment was
made on 28 September 1989. The sixth amendment was made on 21 December
1993. The seventh amendment was made on 22 March 1997. The eighth
amendment was made on 10 November 1997. The ninth amendment was made
on 9 September 1998. The tenth amendment was made on 11 June 1999. The
eleventh amendment was made on 8 June 2000. The twelfth amendment was
made on 25 August 2000. The thirteenth amendment was made on 10 May
2001. The fourteenth amendment was made on 31 May 2002. The fifteenth
amendment was made on 10 June 2003. The sixteenth amendment was made
on 13 June 2005. The seventeenth amendment was made on 13 June 2008. The
eighteenth amendment was made on 10 June 2009. The nineteenth amendment
was made on 9 June 2010. The twentieth amendment was made on 6 June
2012. The twenty-first amendment was made on 8 June 2016. The
twenty-second amendment was made on 17 June 2019. The twenty-third
amendment was made on 16 June 2020. The twenty-fourth amendment was
made on 15 June 2022. The twenty-fifth amendment was made on 16 June
2023.
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Appendix 2

=

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.
Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meetings

Purpose:

1.1 To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for the
Company's shareholders meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these
Rules are adopted pursuant to Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies.

Scope:

2.1 The rules of procedures for the Company's shareholders meetings, except as
otherwise provided by law, regulation, or the articles of incorporation, shall be as
provided in these Rules.

Nominal definition: (omitted)

Authority and responsibility:

4.1. The designated unit responsible for the rules shall be the board of directors.

Flowchart: (omitted)

Management principles:

6.1 Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, the Company's shareholders
meetings shall be convened by the board of directors.

6.1.1 Changes to how the Company convenes its shareholders meeting shall be
resolved by the board of directors, and shall be made no later than mailing of
the shareholders meeting notice. The Company shall prepare electronic
versions of the shareholders meeting notice and proxy forms, and the origins
of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals, including proposals for
ratification, matters for deliberation, or the election or dismissal of directors,
and upload them to the Market Observation Post System (MOPS) before 30
days before the date of a regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days
before the date of a special shareholders meeting. The Company shall
prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting agenda and
supplemental meeting materials and upload them to the MOPS before 21
days before the date of the regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days
before the date of the special shareholders meeting. If, however, the
Company has the paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or more as of the last day
of the most current fiscal year, or total shareholding of foreign shareholders
and PRC shareholders reaches 30% or more as recorded in the register of
shareholders of the shareholders meeting held in the immediately preceding
year, transmission of these electronic files shall be made by 30 days before
the regular shareholders meeting. In addition, before 15 days before the date
of the shareholders meeting, the Company shall also have prepared the
shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and made
them available for review by shareholders at any time. The meeting agenda
and supplemental materials shall also be displayed at the company and
distributed on-site at the meeting.

46



6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.1.5

6.1.6

6.1.1.1 The Company shall make the meeting agenda and supplemental
meeting materials in the preceding paragraph 6.1.1 available to
shareholders for review in the following manner on the date of the
shareholders meeting:
6.1.1.1.1 For physical shareholders meetings, to be distributed
on-site at the meeting.
6.1.1.1.2 For hybrid shareholders meetings, to be distributed on-site
at the meeting and shared on the virtual meeting platform.
6.1.1.1.3 For virtual-only shareholders meetings, electronic files
shall be shared on the virtual meeting platform.
The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the
meeting notice and public announcement. With the consent of the addressee,
the meeting notice may be given in electronic form.
Election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the articles of
incorporation, reduction of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its
status as a public company, approval of competing with the company by
directors, surplus profit distributed in the form of new shares, reserve
distributed in the form of new shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of
the corporation, or any matter under Article 185, paragraph 1 of the
Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities Exchange Act,
Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and
Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers shall be set out and the essential
contents explained in the notice of the reasons for convening the
shareholders meeting. None of the above matters may be raised by an
extraordinary motion.
Where re-election of all directors as well as their inauguration date is stated
in the notice of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting, after the
completion of the re-election in said meeting such inauguration date may not
be altered by any extraordinary motion or otherwise in the same meeting.
A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of issued
shares may submit to the Company a proposal for discussion at a regular
shareholders meeting. The number of items so proposed is limited to one
only, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the
meeting agenda. When the circumstances of any subparagraph of Article
172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company Act apply to a proposal put forward by a
shareholder, the board of directors may exclude it from the agenda. A
shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the corporation to
promote public interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided
procedurally the number of items so proposed is limited only to one in
accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, and no proposal
containing more than one item will be included in the meeting agenda.
Prior to the book closure date before a regular shareholders meeting is held,
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6.2

6.3

6.1.7

6.1.8

the Company shall publicly announce its acceptance of shareholder
proposals in writing or electronically, and the location and time period for
their submission; the period for submission of shareholder proposals may not
be less than 10 days.

Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal
containing more than 300 words will be included in the meeting agenda. The
shareholder making the proposal shall be present in person or by proxy at the
regular shareholders meeting and take part in discussion of the proposal.
Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders meeting, the
Company shall inform the shareholders who submitted proposals of the
proposal screening results, and shall list in the meeting notice the proposals
that conform to the provisions of this article. At the shareholders meeting the
board of directors shall explain the reasons for exclusion of any shareholder
proposals not included in the agenda.

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of
the proxy's authorization.

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy
for any given shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the
Company before five days before the date of the shareholders meeting.
When duplicate proxy forms are delivered, the one received earliest shall
prevail unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy
appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to the Company, if the shareholder
intends to attend the meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronically, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall
be submitted to the Company before two business days before the meeting
date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the
meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

If, after a proxy form is delivered to the Company, a shareholder wishes to
attend the shareholders meeting online, a written notice of proxy
cancellation shall be submitted to the Company two business days before the
meeting date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes
cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of the Company, or a
place easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The
meeting may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration
shall be given to the opinions of the independent directors with respect to the place
and time of the meeting.

6.3.1

The 6.3 restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when the
Company convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting.
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6.4 The Company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during which
attendance registrations for shareholders, solicitors and proxies (collectively
“shareholders”) will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and other
matters for attention.

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

6.4.7

The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted,
as stated in the preceding paragraph 6.4, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to
the time the meeting commences. The place at which attendance
registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient number of
suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations. For virtual
shareholders meetings, shareholders may begin to register on the virtual
meeting platform 30 minutes before the meeting starts. Shareholders
completing registration will be deemed as attend the shareholders meeting in
person.
Shareholders shall attend shareholders meetings based on attendance cards,
sign-in cards, or other certificates of attendance. The Company may not
arbitrarily add requirements for other documents beyond those showing
eligibility to attend presented by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy
forms shall also bring identification documents for verification.
The Company shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance
book to sign, or attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of
signing in.
The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda
book, annual report, attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other
meeting materials. Where there is an election of directors, pre-printed ballots
shall also be furnished.
When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be
represented by more than one representative at a shareholders meeting.
When a juristic person is appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only
one person to represent it in the meeting.
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders wishing to attend
the meeting online shall register with the Company two days before the
meeting date.
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall upload the
meeting agenda book, annual report and other meeting materials to the
virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting starts, and
keep this information disclosed until the end of the meeting.
6.4.7.1 To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall
include the follow particulars in the shareholders meeting notice:
6.4.7.1.1 How shareholders attend the virtual meeting and exercise
their rights.
6.4.7.1.2 Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting platform or
participation in the virtual meeting is obstructed due to
natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, at
least covering the following particulars:
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6.5

6.4.7.1.3To

6.4.7.1.2.1

6.4.7.1.2.2

6.4.7.1.2.3

To what time the meeting is postponed or
from what time the meeting will resume if the
above obstruction continues and cannot be
removed, and the date to which the meeting is
postponed or on which the meeting will
resume.

Shareholders not having registered to attend
the affected virtual shareholders meeting shall
not attend the postponed or resumed session.
In case of a hybrid shareholders meeting,
when the virtual meeting cannot be continued,
if the total number of shares represented at the
meeting, after deducting those represented by
shareholders attending the virtual shareholders
meeting online, meets the minimum legal
requirement for a shareholder meeting, then
the shareholders meeting shall continue. The
shares represented by shareholders attending
the virtual meeting online shall be counted
towards the total number of shares represented
by shareholders present at the meeting, and the
shareholders attending the virtual meeting
online shall be deemed abstaining from voting
on all proposals on meeting agenda of that
shareholders meeting.

6.4.7.1.2.4 Actions to be taken if the outcome of all

proposals have been announced and
extraordinary motion has not been carried out.

convene a virtual-only shareholders meeting,

appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders
with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders meeting
online shall be specified.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall be
chaired by the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on
leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice
chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if there is no vice chairperson or the
vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of
the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors to
act as chair, or, if there are no managing directors, one of the directors shall be
appointed to act as chair. Where the chairperson does not make such a designation,
the directors shall select from among themselves one person to serve as chair.

When a director serves as chair, the director shall be one who has held that
position for six months or more and who understands the financial and
business conditions of the company. The same shall be true for a
representative of a juristic person director that serves as chair.
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6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

It is advisable that shareholders meetings convened by the board of directors
be chaired by the chairman of the board in person and attended by a majority
of the directors, at least one independent director in person, and at least one
member of each functional committee on behalf of the committee. The
attendance shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but
other than the board of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting.
When there are two or more such convening parties, they shall mutually
select a chair from among themselves.

The Company may appoint its attorneys, CPAs, or related persons retained
by it to attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity.

6.6 The recorded materials shall be retained for at least one year. If, however, a
shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording
shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

Where a shareholders meeting is held online, the Company shall keep
records of shareholder registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes
cast and results of votes counted by the Company, and continuously audio
and video record, without interruption, the proceedings of the virtual
meeting from beginning to end.

The information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph
6.6.1 shall be properly kept by the Company during the entirety of its
existence, and copies of the audio and video recording shall be provided to
and kept by the party appointed to handle matters of the virtual meeting.

In case of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company is advised to audio
and video record the back-end operation interface of the virtual meeting
platform.

6.7 Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares.
The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares
indicated by the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in, and the shares checked
in on the virtual meeting platform, plus the number of shares whose voting rights are
exercised by correspondence or electronically.

6.7.1

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and
disclose information concerning the number of nonvoting shares and number
of shares represented by shareholders attending the meeting. However, when
the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of
issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no
more than two such postponements, for a combined total of no more than
one hour, may be made. If the quorum is not met after two postponements
and the attending shareholders still represent less than one-third of the total
number of issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. In the
event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall also declare the
meeting adjourned at the virtual meeting platform.
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6.8

6.9

6.7.2

6.7.3

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the
preceding paragraph 6.7.1, but the attending shareholders represent one-third
or more of the total number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be
adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all
shareholders shall be notified of the tentative resolution and another
shareholders meeting shall be convened within one month. In the event of a
virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders intending to attend the meeting
online shall re-register to the Company in accordance with Article 6.4.6.
When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders
represent a majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may
resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the shareholders meeting
pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting agenda
shall be set by the board of directors. Votes shall be cast on each separate proposal in
the agenda (including extraordinary motions and amendments to the original
proposals set out in the agenda). The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the
agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders meeting.

6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

The provisions of 6.8 apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders meeting
convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the board of
directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of
deliberation on the meeting agenda of the preceding paragraphs 6.8 and 6.8.1
(including extraordinary motions), except by a resolution of the shareholders
meeting. If the chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules
of procedure, the other members of the board of directors shall promptly
assist the attending shareholders in electing a new chair in accordance with
statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes represented by
the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting.

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation
and discussion of proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put
forward by the shareholders; when the chair is of the opinion that a proposal
has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may announce the
discussion closed, call for a vote, and schedule sufficient time for voting.

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the
subject of the speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card
number), and account name. The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the

chair.
6.9.1

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not
actually speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the
speech does not correspond to the subject given on the speaker's slip, the

spoken content shall prevail.
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6.9.2

6.9.3

6.9.4

6.9.5

6.9.6

6.9.7

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than
twice on the same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes.
If the shareholder's speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the
agenda item, the chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not
speak or interrupt unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the
chair and the shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall stop any violation.
When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to
attend a shareholders meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed
may speak on the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person
or direct relevant personnel to respond.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, shareholders attending
the virtual meeting online may raise questions in writing at the virtual
meeting platform from the chair declaring the meeting open until the chair
declaring the meeting adjourned. No more than two questions for the same
proposal may be raised. Each question shall contain no more than 200 words.
The regulations in Articles 6.9 to 6.9.4 do not apply.

As long as questions so raised in accordance with the preceding paragraph
6.9.6 are not in violation of the regulations or beyond the scope of a proposal,
it is advisable the questions be disclosed to the public at the virtual meeting
platform.

6.10 Voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares.

6.10.1

6.10.2

6.10.3

With respect to resolutions of shareholders meetings, the number of shares
held by a shareholder with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of
the total number of issued shares.

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and
there is the likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests
of the Company, that shareholder may not vote on that item, and may not
exercise voting rights as proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the
preceding paragraph 6.10.2 shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights
represented by attending shareholders.

6.10.4 With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent

approved by the competent securities authority, when one person is
concurrently appointed as proxy by two or more shareholders, the voting
rights represented by that proxy may not exceed three percent of the voting
rights represented by the total number of issued shares. If that percentage is
exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that percentage shall not be included
in the calculation.

6.11 A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the
shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179,
paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

53



6.11.1

6.11.2

6.11.3

6.11.4

6.11.5

6.11.6

When the Company holds a shareholder meeting, it shall adopt exercise of
voting rights by electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by
correspondence. When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the
shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting rights by
correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the
meeting in person, but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the
extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals of that meeting;
it is therefore advisable that the Company avoid the submission of
extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or
electronic means under the preceding paragraph 6.11.1 shall deliver a written
declaration of intent to the Company before two days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered,
the one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to
cancel the earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or
electronic means, in the event the shareholder intends to attend the
shareholders meeting in person or online, a written declaration of intent to
retract the voting rights already exercised under Article 6.11.2 shall be made
known to the Company, by the same means by which the voting rights were
exercised, before two business days before the date of the shareholders
meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the voting
rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall prevail.
When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or
electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders meeting,
the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company's
articles of incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an
affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights represented by the
attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or
a person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number of
voting rights represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of
the shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is
held, the results for each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and
against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS.
When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall
present the amended or alternative proposal together with the original
proposal and decide the order in which they will be put to a vote. When any
one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected,
and no further voting shall be required.

\ote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be
appointed by the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be
shareholders of the Company.
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6.11.7 Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be
conducted in public at the place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately
after vote counting has been completed, the results of the voting, including
the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at
the meeting, and a record made of the vote.

6.11.8 When the Company convenes a virtual shareholders meeting, after the chair
declares the meeting open, shareholders attending the meeting online shall
cast votes on proposals and elections on the virtual meeting platform before
the chair announces the voting session ends or will be deemed abstained
from voting.

6.11.9 In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, votes shall be counted at once
after the chair announces the voting session ends, and results of votes and
elections shall be announced immediately.

6.11.10 When the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, if shareholders
who have registered to attend the meeting online in accordance with Article
6.4.6 decide to attend the physical shareholders meeting in person, they shall
revoke their registration two days before the shareholders meeting in the
same manner as they registered. If their registration is not revoked within the
time limit, they may only attend the shareholders meeting online.

6.11.11 When shareholders exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means, unless they have withdrawn the declaration of intent and attended the
shareholders meeting online, except for extraordinary motions, they will not
exercise voting rights on the original proposals or make any amendments to
the original proposals or exercise voting rights on amendments to the
original proposal.

6.12 The election of directors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance with
the applicable election and appointment rules adopted by the Company, and the
voting results shall be announced on-site immediately, including the names of those
elected as directors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected, and the
names of directors not elected and number of votes they received.

6.12.1 The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph 6.12 shall
be sealed with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper
custody for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit
pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained
until the conclusion of the litigation.

6.13 Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the
meeting and a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the
conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced and distributed in
electronic form.

6.13.1 The Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding
paragraph 6.13 by means of a public announcement made through the
MOPS.
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6.13.2

6.13.3

6.13.4

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place
of the meeting, the chair's full name, the methods by which resolutions were
adopted, and a summary of the deliberations and their voting results
(including the number of voting rights), and disclose the number of voting
rights won by each candidate in the event of an election of directors. The
minutes shall be retained for the duration of the existence of the Company.
Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, in addition to the
particulars to be included in the meeting minutes as described in Article
6.13.2, the start time and end time of the shareholders meeting, how the
meeting is convened, the chair's and secretary's name, and actions to be
taken in the event of disruption to the virtual meeting platform or
participation in the meeting online due to natural disasters, accidents or other
force majeure events, and how issues are dealt with shall also be included in
the minutes.

When convening a virtual-only shareholder meeting, other than compliance
with the requirements in the preceding paragraph, the Company shall specify
in the meeting minutes alternative measures available to shareholders with
difficulties in attending a virtual-only shareholders meeting online.

6.14 On the day of a shareholders meeting, the Company shall compile in the prescribed
format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through
solicitation, the number of shares represented by proxies and the number of shares
represented by shareholders attending the meeting by correspondence or electronic

means,

and shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of the

shareholders meeting. In the event a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall
upload the above meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform at least 30
minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the end
of the meeting.

6.14.1

6.14.2

During the Company's virtual shareholders meeting, when the meeting is
called to order, the total number of shares represented at the meeting shall be
disclosed on the virtual meeting platform. The same shall apply whenever
the total number of shares represented at the meeting and a new tally of
votes is released during the meeting.

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material
information under applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation (or Taipei Exchange Market) regulations, the
Company shall upload the content of such resolution to the MOPS within the
prescribed time period.

6.15 Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear
identification cards or arm bands.

6.15.1

6.15.2

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain
order at the meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help
maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or
armband bearing the word “Proctor”.

At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak
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through any device other than the public address equipment set up by the
Company, the chair may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

6.15.3 When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's
correction, obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the
chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder
from the meeting.

6.16 When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time
considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting
temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the
meeting will be resumed.

6.16.1 If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of
the items (including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have
been addressed, the shareholders meeting may adopt a resolution to resume
the meeting at another venue.

6.16.2 A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume
the meeting within five days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company
Act.

6.17 In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall disclose real-time
results of votes and election immediately after the end of the voting session on the
virtual meeting platform according to the regulations, and this disclosure shall
continue at least 15 minutes after the chair has announced the meeting adjourned.

6.18 When the Company convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, both the chair and
secretary shall be in the same location, and the chair shall declare the address of their
location when the meeting is called to order.

6.19 In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company may offer a simple
connection test to shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide relevant real-time
services before and during the meeting to help resolve communication technical
issues.

6.19.1 In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, when declaring the meeting
open, the chair shall also declare, unless under a circumstance where a
meeting is not required to be postponed to or resumed at another time under
Avrticle 44-20, paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the Administration
of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, if the virtual meeting platform
or participation in the virtual meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters,
accidents or other force majeure events before the chair has announced the
meeting adjourned, and the obstruction continues for more than 30 minutes,
the meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on another date within five
days, in which case Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply.

6.19.2 For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as described in the preceding
paragraph 6.19.1, shareholders who have not registered to participate in the
affected shareholders meeting online shall not attend the postponed or
resumed session.

6.19.3 For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under Article 6.19.1, the number
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of shares represented by, and voting rights and election rights exercised by
the shareholders who have registered to participate in the affected
shareholders meeting and have successfully signed in the meeting, but do not
attend the postpone or resumed session, at the affected shareholders meeting,
shall be counted towards the total number of shares, number of voting rights
and number of election rights represented at the postponed or resumed
session.

6.19.4 During a postponed or resumed session of a shareholders meeting held under
Avrticle 6.19.1, no further discussion or resolution is required for proposals
for which votes have been cast and counted and results have been announced,
or list of elected directors.

6.19.5 When the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, and the virtual
meeting cannot continue as described in Article 6.19.1, if the total number of
shares represented at the meeting, after deducting those represented by
shareholders attending the virtual shareholders meeting online, still meets
the minimum legal requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the
shareholders meeting shall continue, and not postponement or resumption
thereof under Article 6.19.1 is required.

6.19.6 Under the circumstances where a meeting should continue as in the
preceding paragraph 6.19.5, the shares represented by shareholders attending
the virtual meeting online shall be counted towards the total number of
shares represented by shareholders present at the meeting, provided these
shareholders shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on
meeting agenda of that shareholders meeting.

6.19.7 When postponing or resuming a meeting according to Article 6.19.1, the
Company shall handle the preparatory work based on the date of the original
shareholders meeting in accordance with the requirements listed under
Avrticle 44-20, paragraph 7 of the Regulations Governing the Administration
of Shareholder Services of Public Companies.

6.19.8 For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 13,
paragraph 3 of Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at
Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2,
Article 44-15, and Article 44-17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing
the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, the
Company’s hall handle the matter based on the date of the shareholders
meeting that is postponed or resumed under Article 6.19.1.

6.20 When convening a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company shall provide
appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders meeting online.

6.21 These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and approved by a
shareholders meeting. Subsequent amendments thereto shall be effected in the same
manner.
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Appendix 3

E-LEAD ELECTRONIC CO., LTD.

Statement of Directors’ Shareholding

Date for suspension of share transfer :

13 April 2025

Title Name Shareholding
Chairman Hsi-Hsun Chen 9,868,149
Deputy Chairman Hsi-Tsang Chen 10,578,041
Director Teng-Kuei Chen 1,049,904
Director Yu-Tzu Fu 791,372
Director Ming-Shou Lin -
Independent Director Chi-Chung Tsai -
Independent Director Cheng-Chun Chang -
Independent Director Shein-Tung Wu -
Independent Director Rong-Lin Jiang -
Total 22, 287,466

Note:

(1) The total number of shares issued by the Company as at the date of 13 April 2025, for the
suspension of share transfer is 122,799,676 shares.

(2) The statutory minimum shareholding requirement for all directors: 8,000,000 shares.

(3) The Company has established an audit committee; hence, the statutory minimum

shareholding requirement for supervisors does not apply.
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